ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
Cct ober 16, 2017
10: 04 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Matt O aman, Chair

Representati ve Zach Fansler, Vice Chair (tel ephonic)
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns (tel ephoni c)
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux

Representative David Eastrman (tel ephonic)

Represent ati ve Chuck Kopp

Representative Lora Reinbold

Representative Charisse MIlett (alternate)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Louise Stutes (alternate)
OTHER MEMBERS

Representati ve Dan Saddl er (tel ephonic)
Representative Charisse MIlett
Representative Geran Tarr

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

Senator dick Coghill

Senat or Berta Gardner

Representative Matt C aman, Chair
Representative Zach Fansler, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Represent ati ve Davi d East man

Represent ati ve Chuck Kopp
Representative Lora Reinbold
Representative Charisse MIlett
Representative Loui se Stutes

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 54(FIN)

“"An Act relating to crinme and crimnal Jlaw, relating to
violation of condition of release; relating to sex trafficking;
relating to sentencing; relating to inprisonnent; relating to
parole; relating to probation; relating to driving wthout a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 16, 2017



license; relating to the pretrial services program and
providing for an effective date."

HEARI NG ONLY - House Judiciary Standing Committee was not
in possession of SB 54 at the tinme of this hearing.

W TNESS REG STER

BRAD MYRSTOL, Ph.D

UAA Associ ate Professor/InterimDirector

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage Justice Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of SB 54, offered a
Power Point titled, "Crinmes Known to Police (Al aska)."

CAPTAI N SEAN CASE, Acting Deputy Chief

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing of SB 54, testified as
to the Anchorage Police Departnent, and answered questions.

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of SB 54, asked
guesti ons.

ROB HENDERSQON, Deputy Attorney Ceneral

Central Ofice, Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing of SB 54, presented "SB
54 Highlights" and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 04: 03 AM

CHAI R MATT CLAMAN cal led the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 10:04 a.m Representatives C anan, Kopp,
LeDoux, Reinbold, MIllett (alternate), Fansler (telephonic), and
Eastman (telephonic) were present at the <call to order.
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins (tel ephonic) arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

| NVI TED TESTI MONY REGARDI NG SB 54

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 16, 2017



10: 04: 52 AM

CHAI R CLAMAN advised that the first commttee of referral for SB
54 is the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee, and the House
Judiciary Standing Committee is its second referral. Therefore,
this neeting is solely an informational meeting to hear
presentations from individuals discussing the inpacts of SB 54.
As chair of this commttee, he said it was inportant to nmeet in
Anchorage and give Anchorage conmmunity nenbers the opportunity
to attend in person. He reiterated that this is solely an
informational neeting regarding SB 54, and the conmttee would
not take public testinmony. The invited speakers are as foll ows:
Brad Myrstol, Associate Professor and Interim Director of the
UAA Justice Center; Captain Sean Case, Acting Deputy Chief,
Anchorage Police Departnent; and Rob Henderson, Deputy Attorney
General, Departnent of |aw, he advised.

10: 06: 26 AM

BRAD MYRSTOL, Ph.D, UAA Associate Professor/Interim Director,
University of Al aska Anchorage Justice Center, advised that his

presentation titled, "Crinmes Known to Police (Al aska)" would
involve the Uniform Crinme Report data conplied nmonthly during
2014 to 2016. This information was originally conpiled in

response to a request from Representative Gbrielle LeDoux
during a conmmttee neeting last week to provide nore detailed
information on a shorter timefrane. During the past few years

the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) published statew de crinme
total information, on a nonth-to-nonth basis, in its Crine
Al aska Report, and this presentation will present that data at
the state level on a nonth-to-nonth basis. The data sources for
the conputation of the rates included in this presentation
include as follows: crinme count information taken from publicly
avai |l abl e and published docunents on crine in Alaska; and the
popul ation data wused to conpute crine rates taken from the
Al aska Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent (DLW), he
expl ai ned.

10: 08: 21 AM

DR. MYRSTCOL turned to slide 2, titled, "Larceny Thefts (Al aska),
and oriented the commttee to the slides as follows: t he
vertical axis on the slides is the actual crine rate conputed as
crime known to police per 100,000 population; the horizontal
axis has two levels of l|labeling, located at the bottomis 2014
2015, 2016 of which are the years of reference, and imedi ately
above is a series of letters highlighted with a green overlay

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- Oct ober 16, 2017



representing the first letter of each nonth. | mportantly, he
noted, with the nonthly crinme rates, the actual magnitude of the
crime rate is substantially lower than "what you would see in
typi cal annualized crinme rate data" because this aggregates by
each nonth. He explained that in an annualized crine rate there
is the sumtotal for the entire year divided by the popul ation

and this presentation is a nmonthly total divided by that sane
popul ation. Therefore, he said, there is a large shift in terns
of the magnitude of the crime rate itself, but the trends
provi de inportant information.

DR. MYRSTOL noted the vertical graying reference line
demarcating the inplenentation of Senate Bill 91 [passed in the
Twenty-N nth Alaska State Legislature] in July 2016, which is
just a point of reference. Finally, he explained, the red dash
line is a visual reference providing the average trends through
t he dat a.

10: 10: 51 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to the specifics of slide 2, pointed to the
three marked hunps and advised it is a clear indication of a
seasonal effect in the nonthly crinme rate. During | ate summer,
early fall, the larceny theft rates in the past three years peak
at that tinme with a sharp drop-off followng that period.
Consi stent with that seasonal trend, during the six-nonth post-
Senate Bill 91 period, there is a considerable drop off in the
| arceny theft rate in the statew de totals. He comment ed, that
is fully consistent with what was seen in the prior two years in
terms of the seasonal drop off and, notably, it did not flatten
out or increase.

10: 11: 46 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to slide 3, titled "Burglaries (Al aska)" and
reiterated that these represent the anount of burglaries known
to police per 100,000 population statewide for each nonth
beginning in January 2014 and extending through Decenber 2016
He pointed to a seasonal trend in this data, and advised that
although it is nore difficult to see with the naked eye,
essentially the seasonal trend remains the same by peaking in
| ate summer and early fall, and dropping off at the early wnter
nont hs peri od. The drop off in the post-Senate Bill 91 period
is consistent wwth the seasonal effect seen during the prior two
years, and he noted that within the burglary rate depicted here
in a three-year period, there is a fairly consistent increase
over tinme.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 16, 2017



10:12:42 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to slide 4, titled, "W Thefts (Al aska)" and
said it is nonth by nonth, January 2014 through Decenber 2016.
He pointed out that there is a different pattern in this data,
of which he said he alluded to during his testinony |ast week
with respect to the behavior of notor vehicle thefts across the
state and various jurisdictions he reviewed, and now reflected
in statew de data. The long and short of it with respect to
this particular slide, he explained, beginning at |late wnter,
early spring 2015, the trend of notor vehicle thefts changed.
He comented that it appears there is a seasonal trend simlar
to what is seen in the other property crines, and begi nning 2015
t hi ngs changed markedly. During the post-Senate Bill 91 period
there was an increase of notor vehicle theft on a nonth-to-nonth
basis, but that is a continuation of a trend that began
approximately one year prior. He noted a significant difference
in overall patterning as conpared to preceding burglaries and
| arceny thefts.

10: 15: 07 AM

DR. MYRSTCOL turned to violent crines beginning with slide 5,
titled, "Homcide (Al aska)" and said the reference points are
January 2014 through Decenber 2016. Most notable, relative to
the others, is the amount of variance around the trend, he
of f er ed. Hom ci des have an extrenely |ow base rate phenonenon
and there is a lot of variation on a year-to-year basis, as well
as the nonth-to-nonth basis. In general, he explained, overall
within this three-year period, there is a roughly flat trend
with a variability upwards and downwards depending upon the
nonth with a slight decrease fromJuly 2016 to Decenber 2016.

10: 15: 59 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to slide 6, titled "Forcible Rape (Al aska)"
the nmonth-to-nmonth crime rate trend between January 2014 through
Decenber 2016, and noted a slight increase overall frompoint to
point, from beginning at a tine series at the end of the tine
seri es, with fluxuation above and below the (indisc.)
t hroughout. During July 2016 to Decenber 2016, once again there
is a slight decrease in the overall rate on the nonth-to-nonth
basis for statew de totals, he said.

10:16: 39 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- Oct ober 16, 2017



DR. MYRSTCL turned to slide 7, titled "Robbery (Al aska)" and
noted a fairly consistent increase overall in the trend from
January 2014 through Decenber 2016, wth a slight downturn
bet ween July 2016 and Decenber 2016

10: 17: 09 AM

DR. MYRSTCOL turned to slide 8, titled "Assault (Al aska)" and
advised that this data represents the assaults per 100,000
popul ati on known to police nonth-by-nonth January 2014 through
2016. He pointed to a fairly consistent increase overall from
January 2014 through Decenber 2016, and in looking at the
specific period July 2016 through Decenber 2016, there is a
slight decrease in that crine rate.

10: 17: 46 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to slide 9, titled "All Crime Rate (Alaska)"
and said that all of the previous slides of crinme rates are
presented on slide 9, and the biggest takeaway of this slide is
to show the relative magnitude differences for two offenses

relative to the other five. He said that with respect to
property offenses, larceny theft is at the top and it varies
from year-to-year. He pointed to property crines conputed in

the Uniform Crime Report (UCR), and said that oftentinmes overal
property crimes trends track closely and parallel |arceny theft
trends, and it is a simlar situation with respect to assaults
and its relationship to violent crine rate totals, wherein
violent crines aggregated with the significant nmajority of all
violent crimes known to police and conpiled in the UCR are
assaul ts.

10: 18: 53 AM

DR. MYRSTOL turned to slide 10, titled "Summary" and expl ai ned
that for each of the seven crinme categories depicted in the
previous slides, the crine rate per 100,000 population in July
2016, and the crinme rate per 100,000 population in Decenber
2016, and the final colum, is a sinple percent change between
those two crinme rate conputations in that particular six-nonth
peri od.

10: 19: 44 AM

DR. MYRSTOL responded to Representative LeDoux that he does not
have statistics for 2017, and explained that typically the
Uniform Crine Report data published in Cine in Al aska are

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- Oct ober 16, 2017



publi shed on a six-nonth delay. The 2016 data was released
approximately one nonth ago, and he would expect the 2017 data
to be publicly available roughly this tinme next year.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX commented that it appears in 2016, people
living in Anchorage "it didn't have the feeling of not being
safe” as it appears to have in 2017. She asked whet her he has
statistics separating areas of the state.

DR. MYRSTCL responded that he does not, and offered that the DPS
performs great work and publishes the nonthly data for the
statewide totals, but the jurisdictionally specific data on the
nmont h-to-nonth basis is not publicly avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted his statenent that the statistics
are not publicly avail able and asked whether it exists.

DR. MYRSTOL answered the he could not speak for DPS as he does
not maintain its Uniform Crinme Report Program Al t hough, he
said, it conpiles data as it receives data, but it is a
vol untary program Therefore, police agencies provide their
data to DPS at different paces depending upon their individua
resources, and sone agencies nay not be able to submt their
2017 data until the close of 2017. Wereas, he noted, other
departnments with nore resources nmay be able to provide data on a
gquarterly or nonthly basis. The summary account data that is
collected on a nonth-to-nonth basis is conpiled on a nonthly
basi s, he said.

10: 22: 39 AM

DR. MYRSTOL, in response to Representative Reinbold, advised
that the population data was received from DPS and is used as
the population netric with a conputation of the rate.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether he used FBI reports and
actual reported crinme known to the Anchorage Police Departnent.

DR. MYRSTOL responded that the data in this particular
presentation represent statewide totals, and these are the sum
total of all agencies for the entire state, by nonth, as
reported to the DPS.

10: 23: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to the summary [slide 10] and
asked whether larceny theft is down 30 percent.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 16, 2017



DR. MYRSTOL explained that the rates for that particular offense
statewide, and the difference between July 2016 rate and
Decenber 2016 rate, is a decline of 30.6 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether Dr. Mrstol was saying
that during that six-nonth snapshot overall theft was down in
the state by 30 percent.

DR. MYRSTOL replied, "I would not."

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked him to describe what is happening
in the state with regard to theft.

DR. MYRSTOL responded that the accunulation of the increase in
| arceny theft, often represented in annual totals, had
accunul ated prior to the inplenentation of Senate Bill 91.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether any crinme was redefined in
any manner in Senate Bill 91.

DR. MYRSTOL answered that he is not qualified to speak to the
legislation in terns of the particular crines that were changed.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD related that it is inportant to be
certain they are neasuring the same issues because crinmes were
recl assified or redefined.

10: 25: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN interjected that Dr. Myrstol has collected
three categories based on crine statistics which are largely
theft, burglary, and notor vehicle theft. In the event the
guestion is whether the definition of what data is being
col |l ected changed from 2014 to 2016 is a different question than
Representative Reinhold's question asking about specific

statutes that were passed or not passed in Senate Bill 91 and
ot her | egislation. He comented that he was unsure of her
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether any crines were redefined
or reclassified in Senate Bill 91, and if the rules were changed
in any manner that the outcomes would be different.

DR. MYRSTOL answered, "Yes."

10: 26: 36 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- Oct ober 16, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE KOPP explained to Representative Reinbold that
hom cide, forcible rape, burglary, robbery, and assault did not
change and were not redefined. The dollar threshold of |arceny
theft changed, and he opined that notor vehicle theft was not
addressed in that legislation. He offered appreciation that the
muni ci pality tightened up the law on that, which nakes it easier
to prosecute people who participate based on crimnal negligence
(audio difficulties) versus an intentional know edge, wll be
good for public safety.

10: 27: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked Dr. Myrstol to define larceny theft.

DR. MYRSTCL responded, in general, the FBI definition of |arceny
theft is a personal taking of property. For exanple, there is a
clear distinction in the FBI categorization and classification
of larceny theft as distinct from burglary and robbery. There
is a thick coding manual that each agency uses to classify
according to FBlI rules, he said.

10: 28: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether shoplifting would conme under
the definition of larceny theft.

DR. MYRSTCL clarified that he should not have said personal

property, but rather private property. He explained that
larceny theft is actually a specific subcategory of |arceny
theft. For exanple, he noted, when he testified before the
Fi nance Subconmi ttee | ast week, he pr esent ed specific

shoplifting data as a subcategory of larceny theft within the
cat egori zati on.

10: 28: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether Dr. Myrstol has shoplifting
dat a.

DR. MYRSTOL answered in the affirmati ve.

DR. MYRSTOL, in response to Representative LeDoux, advised that
he did not have the shoplifting data with himtoday.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted interest in the statistics wth
respect to the shoplifting offense because it is the issue

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- Oct ober 16, 2017



| egislators are hearing about from local stores in their
conmuni ti es.

DR. MYRSTOL advised he would provide the statistics to the
conm ttee.

10: 29: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted there are the state definitions and
also the three FBI definitions, larceny theft, burglary, and
notor vehicle theft. He asked whether there are any theft

offenses in Alaska that are not included within those three FBI
cat egori es.

DR. MYRSTOL opined, "No," and deferred to the Uniform Crine
Reporting Program folks at the Departnent of Public Safety
(DPS) . However, he further opined, there has been no change in
the FBI definitions of those crimes as they are categorized and
coded for 2016.

10: 30: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD descri bed Representative Kopp "as a huge
proponent of Senate Bill 91," and said she would Iike
Representative Kopp to define how |arceny theft changed, and to
explain how store after store dramatically conpl ai ns about theft
with a 98 percent increase.

10: 31: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated that Dr. Myrstol is testifying, and
he expressed that the purpose of the conmttee hearing was not
to interrogate Representative Kopp, who was not a nmenber of the
| egi sl ature when Senate Bill 91 passed. He stated he would not
ask Representative Kopp to respond to Representative Reinbold,
and advised that Rob Henderson, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, would
testify later in the hearing and nay better be able to answer
her question about crimnal code definitions.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said "He said it was redefine |arceny
theft. | wanted to clarify he's the one that brought it up.”

DR. MYRSTOL asked that Representative Reinbold repeat the
guesti on.

10: 32: 25 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- Oct ober 16, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said that Representative Kopp stated
"sonet hing about I|arceny theft. | wanted to give him the
opportunity” to state whether larceny theft was redefined which
Dr. Myrstol said is the taking of personal property. She asked
how to explain "the "vast -- what we're seeing in the
newspapers, which we're seeing on the news, which is here today
versus your statistics" that it has dropped 30 percent, and how
to explain this discrepancy.

DR. MYRSTCL clarified that the difference is based upon what |aw

enf or cenent reported. He stressed the inportance of
understanding the nature of the data, and its strengths and
limtations for any particular data source being used. The

data, as aggregated in crinme in Alaska, are what police
departnments are telling the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

and have brought to its attention. Therefore, he said, the
crime rate is conputed for these statewide totals as the sum
total of all offenses within a particular category as defined by
the FBI and divided by the total population, and that is how

that rate is conputed. He commented that with respect to the
decline for larceny theft, based on the two prior years, would
be perfectly predictable because it is a seasonal effect. The

trend would have suggested there would be a mnarked decline
followwng the late summer, early fall of 2016, which would be
his junping off place, he said. He then referred to [slide 2],
| arceny theft, noting a decline in 2016, and said it was fairly
predi ctabl e assum ng that that seasonal effect is robust in the
dat a. He apologized that he did not have nonth-to-nonth data
avai l abl e that extends back into a farther period of tinme where
the data could be nodeled nore rigorously. He reiterated that
his first explanation would be it is a seasonal effect wherein
there is nore theft in the summer. The mechani sns of that may
be any nunber of things, nunber of tourists, greater influx of
people into the state, kids out of school, and many hypotheses
could be offered with respect to the particular dynam cs of the
seasonal effect. He said that with respect to the decline, he
attributed it to seasonality and the trend.

10: 35: 15 AM

CHAI R CLAMAN expl ained that the conmttee is on a tight schedule
and woul d take one or at the nobst two nore questions.

10: 35: 23 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 16, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD stated she would like a yes or no
answer, and asked whether the definition of theft was changed in
any manner or reclassified in Senate Bill 91.

DR. MYRSTOL answered, "Yes."

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked for an expl anation ...

CHAIR CLAMAN interjected that Representative Kopp has the |ast
guesti on.

10: 35: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP noted that the data Dr. Mrstol brought
forth was good, and the dollar amount of theft was changed in
that a class B misdeneanor is now l|less than $250; class A
m sdeneanor is $250 all the way up to just under $1,000; and
$1,000 or nore is a felony. He referred to what was said to be
his phil osophical position, and advised that he is personally
commtted to fighting crinme, supporting victims, and protecting
t axpayer dollar accountability in every dollar spent on public
safety. He stressed the inportance of always speaking about
good justice policy, good reforns, and that it is never believed
"we have finally arrived, and we never have to | ook at sonething
again," and always be willing to exam ne the data. He thanked
Dr. Myrstol for his good data and suggested that DPS provide an
update of nore recent data.

10: 37: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to the question about the change
in the theft |evel, and explained that "what was a A m sdeneanor
was a B msdeneanor was a felony in theft." He asked whet her
t hat changes the data coll ected.

DR. MYRSTOL deferred to DPS, and opined that to his know edge
there is no redefinition in the UCR definitions of |[|arceny
theft. How the statutory provisions enacted via Senate Bill 91,
and the reclassification of particular offenses, my not have
i npacted how particular offenses were counted in the post-Senate
Bill 91 period, he explained, but he could not say with any
definitiveness there was zero i npact.

10: 38: 40 AM

CAPTAIN SEAN CASE, Acting Deputy Chief, Anchorage Police
Departnment, noted that the Anchorage Police Departnent is in

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- Oct ober 16, 2017



full support of the passage of SB 54 as it addresses sone of the
issues currently being seen that are identified as problens.
The first issue is violating conditions of release, and changi ng
it to a crimnal offense is beneficial to the Anchorage Police
Depart ment . Currently, he explained, when |aw enforcenent
arrests soneone and the judge orders conditions of release, the
person can essentially not follow those conditions and no
penalty is associated in the event the person violates those
condi ti ons. He offered that changing it to a crimnal offense
with possible jail time is a general deterrence in crimnalizing
violations of conditions of release. Also, he said, SB 54 puts
a penalty back into thefts wunder $250 as Anchorage business
owners have been vocal about the dramatic increases in thefts,
trespass, and assault. He related that giving |aw enforcenent
the opportunity to arrest folks with nultiple theft counts and
place them in custody can not only cut down on the thefts but
also cut down on folks returning to the businesses and
t respassi ng.

10: 40: 56 AM

CAPTAIN CASE referred to thefts under $250, and noted that
busi nesses are sinply not involving the police department which
is one of the reasons shoplifting nunbers stay the sane, except
that businesses are showng an increase in those types of
crines. Business owner have advised |aw enforcenent they do not
call because they do not believe it would be beneficial, he
advi sed.

CAPTAIN CASE referred to class C felony under SB 54, and advi sed
that the change is beneficial because |aw enforcenent has seen

i ncreased vehicle theft. He pointed out that vehicle thefts did
not start increasing in response to Senate Bill 91, and that the
I ncrease I n vehicl e thefts started prior to SB  91.

Neverthel ess, he said, there is an increase, and the penalty for
first-tinme vehicle theft, first-time assault in the third
degree, and first-tinme burglary of a business all have no jai
time, except that the |aw changes under SB 54. The Anchor age
Police Departnent believes that wll be inpactful for those
crines, particularly burglary and vehicle theft.

10: 42: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether there were additional fixes
he would recommend in SB 54.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- Oct ober 16, 2017



CAPTAIN CASE responded that crimnal justice reform is an
ongoi ng process and based on what is heard in the community,
this is a good first step. He opined that the question of what
el se can be done beconmes a | arger conversation because there are
things in Senate Bill 91 that are scheduled to take effect in
January [2018] and its successes wll be seen in the future.
Ceneral ly speaking, he noted, there are sonme things that can be
done in addition to SB 54, but the thing to do immedi ately is
pass this legislation and see what kind of inpact this has, and
then continue to address crimnal justice reformin Al aska from
t hat point forward

CHAI R CLAMAN pointed out that Captain Case is a nenber of the
Al aska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion, and is a regular attendee at
al | rneetings.

10: 43: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted that SB 54 could be anended wth
respect to other issues, and asked what other issues he m ght
suggest .

CAPTAIN CASE stressed the need for substance abuse treatnment
facilities and nental health treatnent facilities in the State
of Alaska, conbined with the need to try to divert those
involved in crimnal activity at the street level rather than

weeks and nonths later in the <crimnal justice system
particularly those with nental health issues or substance abuse
i ssues. Thus, he pointed out, when folks get involved in the
prosecution phase there is the ability to inpact some of these
of fenders early on, which will yield higher results in the |ong
run.

10: 44: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD advised that police officers are
frustrated and discouraged, and that the overall belief is that
they do not Ilike Senate Bill 91. Representati ve Reinbold
reiterated her ongoing concern with Senate Bill 91, described
the upward turn in crinme, and asked whether police officers want
a repeal of Senate Bill 91.

CAPTAIN CASE said he would not speak for the officers, and
agreed there is sone frustrations with the officers on the
street. People need to understand that police officer's sign up
to have sonme sort of inpact on issues related to crinme in the
street. He noted that when hiring police officers, generally,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- Oct ober 16, 2017



the first thing they say is that they want to perform this job
to hel p people, and the way they have hel ped people for years is
using the law to put people in jail and protecting those who
cannot protect thenselves. When the rules are changed that
creates sone disenfranchisenent, which does not nean the
traditional nodel of policing or crimnal justice in the state
has to remain the sane. Law enforcement can still benefit the
peopl e of Al aska by changing the way "we go about our business.”
Currently, he pointed out, the problemis that the state is in
that in-between stage, not all of crimnal justice reformis in
place, and a lot of officers are not yet at the next step
because the next step is not even an option.

10: 47: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD reiterated that the people "and cops”
are beyond frustrated and asked whether Captain Case believes
the bail schedule has had an inpact on the |evels of crinme being

10:48: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN interjected that Captain Case did not
attend this hearing to discuss the bail schedule, and for
Representative Reinbold to focus on the matters Captain Case is
avai lable to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD reiterated the current events happening
in public safety, and conmented that the judiciary branch made
dramati c changes to the bail schedule wherein people receive a
slap on their hand if they do not show up for court.

10: 49: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR, Al aska State Legislature, referred to
t he confusion about the inplenentation of justice reform on the
side of officers, such that they hear they can no |onger arrest

sonmeone. She clarified that it is not that officers cannot
arrest soneone, it is what takes place after that arrest,
wherein the person is issued a summobns to court versus
previously having jail tine. She suggested that a mi ssing

conponent is education for |aw enforcenent about these changes,
and noted that officers do not have a continuing education
requirenent as required for other professions on an annual
basi s. She asked how this information should be conmunicated
with aw enforcenent to prevent m ssing pieces where the | aw has

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- Oct ober 16, 2017



been changed and the officers receive the full information about
t hose changes in their day-to-day work.

10: 50: 50 AM

CAPTAIN CASE responded that sone of the confusion starts when
new legislation is introduced that affects the officer on the
street, and then there are three to four versions after severa
nont hs. The officers receive the information on version one
| aunch down that path, and six-nonths later there is the
| egislation that actually passed. He related that three things
happened, as follows: the loop is not closed on the origina
bill; they already have it in their mind as to what this is al
about; and many changes to Senate Bill 91 which was conplex and
conpl i cated enough, but then it actually goes down to the street
and it becones tinme for the user to fill out paperwork "and hand
it in boxes, and stuff nost people don't think about."” The
system is very conplex, he described, and a mninmum of three
agencies are involved with every person |aw enforcenent puts
handcuffs on and escorts to jail because those three agencies
collect different records, keep different records, and track
different records, so it becones conplicated and conpl ex.

CAPTAI N CASE acknow edged there is not a state requirenent for
| aw enforcenent and continui ng education due probably because it
woul d bankrupt small agencies throughout the state if they were
required to perform continuing education when they only have two

of ficers. He said he agrees that a better job nust be
undertaken in educating officers and making sure they are on the
same sheet of nusic. Once the education process begins, he

poi nted out, the Anchorage Police Departnent needs to have a few
nore stakeholders at the table so it can understand how the
process works from start to finish. O herwi se, inevitably, it
will train the officers on how to perform a task, they go out
and performthe task, and three nonths later the officers advise
that everything they were told to do was conpletely wong,
i neffective, and does not work. The problem will be sonething
downstream with a different agency that caused the original
train to run anuck so there needs to be better coordination when
training officers, he said.

10: 53: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR comented that on the |egislative side, that
must be a lesson learned in ternms of making big changes and the
i npl enentation tinmeline. There is a necessity in meking sure
the legislature accommpbdates a period of time to get the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 16- Oct ober 16, 2017



information out to the officers. She comrented that this is
sonething the legislature wll hopefully Jlearn from this
experience, how to inprove that issue even with the changes in
54, how to nmke sure this is clearly conmunicated, and that
everyone is on the same page.

CAPTAI N CASE answered that the imedi ate inplenentation portions

of Senate Bill 91 caused a lot of problens, and a |lot of
officer's call prosecutors or district attorney offices to
advise they are not sure what to do with this because it was
literally different yesterday than today. Typically, he

advised, the answer the officers would receive is that they
would try to give the best answer they could, but they were in
the sane position as the police officers, and that could be
i mproved in the future.

10: 54: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked Captain Case to explain how
assault in the third degree was changed under Senate Bill 91.

CAPTAIN CASE responded that SB 54 is specific on changing the
jail time of a first-tine class C felony, and it also lists
specific offenses which primarily are operating influence
of fenses that those do not inpact, as it relates to SB 54. He
explained that is the only differentiation about the first-tine
class C felonies.

10: 55: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON opi ned that "assaults were supposed to
be wuninpacted" and after a review in the spring of 2016 he
realized that was not entirely accurate, "but that is what we
were told.” He asked that if soneone commits an assault in the
third degree and it is their first-class C felony, whether they
cannot be jail ed.

CAPTAI N CASE deferred to Rob Henderson, Departnent of Law.
REPRESENTATI VE KOPP answered that one of the discrepancies is
the difference between statutory definition of offense and

penal ties.

10: 57: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT opined that Senate Bill 91 redefined al
class C felonies, except unclassified felonies, in some nmanner

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- Oct ober 16, 2017



whether it was sentencing or the definition of the crine. She
described the confusion for the public and |aw enforcenent is
based on the fact there was so nmuch definition change and
penalty change that it became an overarching reasoning that it
is a class C felony and "you're just not going to go to jail,"
the penalties remain the same for unclassified fel onies.

There is a perception in the public that all class C felonies
changed when there is still a portion of unclassified that had
no distinct changes. She asked whether there is a specific
change predom nantly needed outside of the class C felony
changes, such as the "sober law' and being able to hold an
i ntoxi cated individual until they are no |onger intoxicated.

CAPTAI N CASE responded that that is probably the biggest inpact
in law enforcenent currently. For exanple, a police officer
comes in contact with someone who commtted a m sdeneanor crine
whi |l e under the influence, previously the police officer had the
ability to book those folks into jail until they were sober, or
a sober adult could pick them up, which allows for a cooling off
tinme. He said that in the event soneone is driving under the
influence or commits a disorderly conduct offense and |aw
enforcenment has contact wth them and gives them a summons to
appear, but because they cannot be held in jail and are
extrenely intoxicated, the police may have a secondary contact
with them later on either as a victimor in commtting a new
of fense. These folks are not particularly in the best frane of
mnd when they conmtted the crime in the first place and
al cohol is probably a contributing factor, except, when |aw
enforcenment does not have the ability to renmove sonme of those
i ndi viduals and put them somewhere to sober up and make better
decisions, it is a problem That is probably the biggest inpact
officers are seeing on the street, watching folks under the
i nfluence |eave the scene without |aw enforcenent's ability to
i nt ervene.

11: 00: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked that in the case of donestic
violence where the person is intoxicated, whether «currently
police can hold sonmeone who has conmtted a domestic violence
assault because it is under an uncl assified felony.

CAPTAIN CASE agreed, and he said that donestic violence is
di fferent

CHAIR CLAMAN interjected that donmestic violence is a mandatory
arrest.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- Oct ober 16, 2017



CAPTAI N CASE answered in the affirmati ve.

11: 01: 18 AM

CHAIR CLAMAN referred to a shoplifting offense prior to justice
reform efforts and since the passage of Senate Bill 91, and
asked whether businesses called in every shop lifting event to
the police or whether many businesses just did not call police
even before justice reform began.

CAPTAIN CASE said he would venture a guess that there is under-
reporting of everything all of the tinme.

11: 01: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surmised that SB 54 does not change
anything with respect to whether the police departnent can hold
someone who is drunk

CAPTAI N CASE answered in the affirmati ve.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surm sed that that is sonething additional
Captain Case would like to see in SB 54.

CAPTAIN CASE replied that it would be beneficial to |aw
enforcenent, and it is not necessary for SB 54 right now.

11: 02: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether any other change to SB 54
may be beneficial to law enforcenent, other than the nental
heal th progranms he nmentioned previously.

CAPTAI N CASE responded (indisc.) at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether there was anything
el se "out there" that Captain Case may bei ng consideri ng.

CAPTAIN CASE answered that the Alaska Crimnal Justice
Comm ssion and others throughout the state are performng a |ot
of work, which is a much | onger conversation. There is nothing
that could be passed imediately and have an inmediate inpact,
and he commented that Representative LeDoux was asking a "very
conplex, multi-tiered question® and there was not a sinple
response.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- Oct ober 16, 2017



CHAI R CLAMAN surm sed that the Anchorage Police Departnent was
not advocating any anendnents to SB 54 at this point.

CAPTAI N CASE answered in the affirmati ve.

11: 04: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD continued to express her concern wth
Senate Bill 91, and that if the property is under $250, a person
could steal "one hundred thousand tines and you can't have a day
injail." Currently, she said, a class C felony, which is theft
of a firearm vehicle theft, animal cruelty, PFD theft, and the
list of class C felonies goes on, and as |ong as the person does
not have a prior conviction they cannot have a day in jail.

CHAIR CLAMAN interjected that Representative Reinbold was not
asking a question. He explained that SB 54 actually changes the
status and nakes it so the very crines she was describing would
actually have penalties and it sounded |ike support for SB 54.
He asked that she ask a question of the wtness.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether Captain Case would prefer
theft to be "back-classified" to pre-Senate Bill 91, and have
harsher penalties with jail tinme for theft.

REPRESENTATI VE CHAI R CLAMAN said he would narrow Representative
Rei nbold's question to be, whether Captain Case proposes a
different treatnent of theft than that proposed in SB 54 as a
change from what was approved in Senate Bill 91.

CAPTAI N CASE answered, "No."

11: 07: 17 AM

ROB HENDERSON, Deputy Attorney Ceneral, Central Ofice, Crimna
Di vi sion, Departnment of Law, turned to slides 2-3, and expl ained
that the 13 nenber Alaska Crimnal Justice Commission brings a

uni que and specific skill set to the table, and it is charged
with evaluating crimnal justice issues, what works and what
does not work. In 2015, the Alaska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion

found that Alaska's prison population was growing at an
unsustai nable rate, and the state could not continue in the sane

manner as in the past. He noted that two out three inmates
returned to prison within three years, a 66 percent recidivism
rate, and there was an overreliance on incarceration. The

comm ssion has long discussed, and continues to discuss at
length, that |ong periods of incarceration have a crimnogenic

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- Oct ober 16, 2017



effect on offenders, and to find alternatives to incarceration
when appropri ate. He advised that crimnal justice reform is
supported by the Departnent of Law and this adm nistration, and
the state needs to continue noving in the direction of crimna
justice reform Senate Bill 91 was not working as designed once
it was inplenented into practice, he acknow edged, and SB 54 is
designed to address those issues.

11:10: 46 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 4, and reiterated there were
uni nt ended consequences related to Senate Bill 91 because it
needed nore flexibility. Absol utely necessary, he advised, is

that |aw enforcenent, prosecutors, and judges have flexibility
when addressing some of these issues because sentencing is an
i ndi vidual i zed process. At the tine a judge inposes any type of

sentence, it is required by case law, statute, and the
Constitution of the State of Alaska to consider five
cont enpl ati ons, as fol |l ows: rehabilitation; i sol ati on;

deterrence of offender after release; deterrence of others; and
community condemmation and reaffirmation of societal norns.
These are basic principles in crimnal |law, and basic principles
every judge is required to go through and announce on the record
when they inpose a sentence as the judge goes through and
deci des how each principle furthers t he def endant ' s
rehabilitation. In addition to State v. Chaney "the Chaney
factors,"” judges are required to bal ance both reformation of the
of fender against the need to protect the public and the rights
of victinms. These two things will always be at odds, there wll
be a tension, this is the goal of every judge inposing a
sent ence, he expl ai ned.

11:13: 04 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 5, and pointed out that every
situation is different, every offender, every circunstance, even
the same offender who commits the sanme of fense because they wll
come in under different circunmstances, so sentencing nust be
i ndi vi dual i zed. The factors listed on slide 5, are specific
factors judges will assess when inposing a sentence, and are in
addition to the criteria of the Chaney factors, as follows:
acceptance or denial of responsibility, an offender who accepts
responsibility should be treated differently under the |aw than
an offender who refuses to take responsibility for their
actions; the sane as wth substance abuse wherein soneone is
asking for help; prior crimnal activity, and he said he
intentionally did not say "prior crimnal convictions" because

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- Oct ober 16, 2017



crimnal convictions are limted, it is specific, requires that
the person nove all the way through the crimnal justice
process, and obtain a conviction - a judge is permtted, under
certain circunstances, to assess, evaluate, and give weight to a
person's prior crimnal activity even though they had not vyet
been convicted because judges wll always give consideration to
the victim their famly, and how this offense affected this
community; judges will consider how the defendant acted after
the offense in post-offense behavior; and the notivation for
crimnal behavior. Sonmeone notivated by noney should be treated
differently than sonmeone notivated by a substance abuse issue

These are not the only itens judges will consider, he said.

11: 16: 09 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 6, and explained that at the very
core of SB 54, it tries to balance all of these things together,
and does not depart from the idea and mindset that crim nal
justice reformis necessary and appropriate. He said to bal ance
that against the recognition that judges, prosecutors, and |aw
enforcement need nore tools, and that tool is discretion, the
ability to assess each case individually.

11:16:45 AM

MR. HENDERSON described the three main highlights of SB 54 cl ass
C felony offenses as follows: petty theft; theft in the fourth
degree; and violation of conditions of release (VCOR). The
three terms he said he will continue to use are active tineg,
suspended tine, and probationary tinme. He explained that active
time is that period of incarceration the judge can inpose
i mrediately wupon finding a person guilty at sentencing.
Suspended tinme is the period of incarceration that wll be
wi thheld from inposition on the condition the person follows
their probation conditions, and in the event they fail to follow
their probation conditions, violate that probation, the court
then has the authority to inpose a portion of that suspended

tinme. Probation term is the length of tine a person wll be
held under the supervision of the Departnment of Corrections
(DOC), they will have a probation officer, or the court system

if they are on "informal m sdeneanor probation.”

11:18: 31 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 7, and explained that SB 54, with
regard to class C felony offenses, changes the presunptive range
from what it is now, which is zero to 18 nonths suspended

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- Oct ober 16, 2017



probation, to zero to one year. Under the former law, the
presunptive range for class C felony offenses was zero to two
years, and a judge could inpose a sentence of both active and
suspended tinme anywhere between zero to two years dependi ng upon
the circunstance of the offense. Under current law, it was
changed to zero to 18 nonth suspended tine under a term of
probation. Under SB 54, the range is zero to one-year period of
incarceration, and the zero to one-year period can be active
tinme, suspended tine, and nost likely a conbination of both. He
expl ai ned that suspended tinme and probation is key to achieving
all of the sentencing factors he previously listed because
prosecutors want individuals on probation, on supervised
rel ease. There are few offenders in which the prosecution wll
say "flat tinme" because the way prosecutors achieve all of those
sentencing goals and finds the balance between deterrence,
isolation, rehabilitation, and such, is that the prosecutor asks
the judge to inpose sone active tine and sone suspended tine,
and keep that over the defendant's head and put them on
probati on. He advised that it is key that all offenders be
rel eased from incarceration under some form of supervision, and
the range of zero to one year of incarceration gives the
prosecutors and the judges the ability to tailor the sentence to
t he individual offender. This bill also authorizes judges to
or der resi denti al treat ment, which is inportant because
residential treatnment is akin to incarceration under the [|aw
In the event the judge wanted to incentivize or order the person
to treatnment, for instance 60-90 days of inpatient residential
treatnment, the judge had to have the authority to inpose actua
jail tinme and nmake that a condition of probation. He expl ai ned
that SB 54 allows the judge to order residential treatnent, if
appropri ate.

11: 22: 44 AM

MR. HENDERSON expl ained that first felony conviction does not
necessarily nmean first conviction, and every offender and re-
offense is different. He further explained that soneone may
have a m sdeneanor crimnal history or an old felony crimnal
hi story, and all of those things indicate that person should be
treated differently than someone with no crinmnal history. Zero
to one year allows the judge to treat offenders differently, he
sai d.

11: 23: 27 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 8, and advised that the second key
conponent of SB 54 is theft under $250, and under state code

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 23- Oct ober 16, 2017



theft in the fourth degree is also known as petty theft. The
di scussion is about increasing discretion for judges to inpose
jail time, if appropriate, under those specific circunstances.
He noted public concern as to whether or not tools are avail able
to disrupt that crimnal cycle when people engage in repeated
thefts and shoplifts. The bill returns that discretion to
prosecutors and judges to order soneone into jail if convicted
of theft and it is their second or third offense.

11:24:28 AM

MR. HENDERSON continued with slide 8, and advised it depicts
that under fornmer law there were graduated sanctions for the
of fenses, and under the first two theft offenses, a person could
receive up to 90-days in jail, and the third theft offense,
referred to as recidivist theft, was up to one year in jail

Under current |aw, he advised, the first two theft offenses were

changed to just fines or probation and no jail tine was
authorized, and at the third offense, the judge was authorized
to inpose up to five days suspended. In the event this person

violated their conditions of probation, the judge was authorized
to inpose a term of jail for that violation, and the judges
woul d return the person to incarceration or inpose jail time for
the violation of probation, not for the wunderlying offense.

This bill takes that first offense and allows for up to five
days suspended on the first offense, nmeaning that on the first
| ow- 1 evel theft the person will receive a sentence of five-days

suspended and probation on the condition they perform well on
probation, and that jail term would not be inposed. Except, he
noted, in the event the person did not perform well on
probation, a jail termwould be inposed. On the second or third
of fense, the judge has authority to inpose active jail tine. He
explained that the bill attenpts to provide tools so when there
are repeat offenders with the continual cycle of thefts, the
cycl e can be di srupted.

11: 26: 30 AM

MR. HENDERSON turned to slide 9, and explained that the fina
main aspect of SB 54 is violating conditions of release.
Captain Case noted confusion and struggle that |aw enforcenent
does not have the tools necessary to address people violating

their bail conditions, and the bill allows up to five days in
jail, if appropriate. This is inportant because under current
law, a person violating conditions of release is conmtting a
violation, not a crimnal act. He explained that it is an

arrestable violation that may be sanctioned with a fine, except

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- Oct ober 16, 2017



that description 1is confusing because, generally speaking,
violations are not arrestable. However, he said, what the |aw
allows is that it changes that dynamc a bit and "we said that
officers need the ability to arrest on VCORs, but we're going to
keep it as a violation,”" which is contrary to the way the |aw
has historically been witten and that necessarily created
certain confusion, he said. The practical effect of that was
that judges were apprehensive about holding soneone in jail on a
vi ol ation, even though it was an arrestable violation, until the
bail hearing in which the original judge could then re-assess
what bail should be in the underlying sentence, he advised.
This bill addresses that issue by nmeking violations of
conditions of release a crimnal offense again, a class B
m sdeneanor, and it allows for the inposition of up to five-days

in jail, if appropriate. He offered that this will clarify for
|aw enforcenent that it can take soneone into custody who is
violating their bail conditions, and it will also clarify for

judges that they can hold that person in jail pending the
subsequent bail review for that underlying offense.

11:29: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surm sed that under SB 54, for the first
of fense, the penalty is a "get out of jail free card.™

MR. HENDERSON referred to theft in the fourth degree, the petty
theft statute, and explained that under the current iteration of
SB 54, a person convicted of a first-tine theft in the fourth-
degree of fense woul d receive a suspended jail sentence.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to the ongoing frequency of
current shoplifting crines, and asked the rationale for taking
away the judge's discretion under the fornmer |aw

MR. HENDERSON replied that this legislation returns that
di scretion, acknowledging it is not as nuch discretion as
existed in the forner law, which was 90 days. This, he offered,
is that balance and conprom se because it is known that |ong
periods of incarceration nmay have that crimnogenic effect, and
it is a person's first lowlevel theft conviction.

11: 30: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to long periods of incarceration
possi bly contributing to recidivism and argued that one or two
days did not appear to be a long period of tine.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 25- Oct ober 16, 2017



MR. HENDERSON referred to the results of the research, and
explained that it shows that |ong periods of incarceration had a
crimnogenic effect on low risk offenders. He clarified that
that does not necessarily nmean offenders wth |ow |eve

of fenses, but low risk offenders. He described that there was a
good assunption that those individuals convicted of their first
petty theft, with no prior crimnal theft history, would fall
into the category of lower risk

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that the person could have no
prior theft history, but they could have histories for
m sdeneanor assaults, and various other deeds, and still only
receive five days suspended, which is the "get out of jail card
for the first theft."

MR. HENDERSON responded that SB 54 limts that prior history to
theft history, and it is possible that sonmeone could have a
prior crimnal history that is non-theft related. He remarked
that whether it is a "get out of jail free card" is a policy
guestion, but there is a sanction of m sdenmeanor probation with
up to five days in jail

11: 32: 48 AM

CHAI R CLAMAN noted, from a practical standpoint and |ong before
the justice reform process started, with regard to a first-tine
theft in the fourth degree (audio difficulties) <class B
m sdeneanor theft conviction, he asked whether folks were
receiving jail time or a suspended sentence nost of the tine.

MR. HENDERSON answered that, as a general rule with first tinme
| ow- |l evel theft offenders, it was unlikely prosecutors would ask
for jail time on those offenses.

11: 33: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether M. Henderson was in favor
of Senate Bill 91.

MR. HENDERSON replied that he is in favor of crimnal justice
reform

11: 33: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD described SB 54 as a baby step in the
right direction, and asked that in his experience, how many

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- Oct ober 16, 2017



times a person actually stole property prior to being caught and
convi ct ed.

MR. HENDERSON opi ned that Representative Reinbold s question was
how often, in his experience, soneone he was convicting or
asking a jury to convict soneone of theft in the fourth degree,
did he know, based on other information, that they had prior
i nvolvenent in the crimnal justice system including theft.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said that before soneone is actually
caught stealing oftentinmes they have already done it nmnultiple
times ...

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD, in response to Chair Cl aman's question,
answered that she was focusing solely on theft.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether her question was that
someone was stopped for shoplifting in Fred Myer, and before
that tinme, when they were in front of prosecutors five prior
times ...

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD clarified that research has shown there
are dozens of times soneone steals before being caught and
convicted, and described that it is a high bar to be caught and
al so convicted. She offered concern as to the zero to five days
(audio difficulties) discretionary. She said it is inportant
that commttee nenbers are able to express the concerns of the
peopl e and districts they represent and not be shut out.

11: 36: 56 AM

CHAIR CLAMAN noted that people are not being shut out, and
Representati ve Rei nbol d di sagreed.

11:37:11 AM

MR. HENDERSON responded that he had not experienced, during his
time as a prosecutor, where soneone had several prior incidents
of shoplifting when he was convicting for the first conviction

but if he had had that information, it would have been inportant
to know as the prosecutor. He then referred to the principle
that sentencing has to be an individualized process, and said
that if he knew, through testinmony or information from | oss
prevention at sone of these stores, that a certain individua

continued to cone into the store over and over again and this is
the first time they were caught, that is sonething the judge
needs to know. Equally, he pointed out, if this is the first

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- Oct ober 16, 2017



time the person had been involved in the crimnal justice system
and first theft <conviction, the judge needs to know that
i nformation.

11: 38: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD surmised that M. Henderson believes
people are caught the first tinme, and asked that with his |ega
background, how many tinmes a person had previously stolen by the
time they were caught and convi ct ed.

CHAIR CLAMAN noted that M. Henderson had answered that
guestion, but he would give Representative Reinbold another shot
at clarification.

MR. HENDERSON answered that he could not answer that question of
data and social science, and as a prosecutor he had to operate
with the information before him

11: 39: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP said that speaking from his experience as a
police officer from 1986 - 2009, it was conmmon when bringing
soneone into arraignnent, if |law enforcenment had know edge there
were other problens associated wth the person, such as other
arrests still working their way through the system for high risk
behavi ors under investigation, |aw enforcenent could ask for a
hi gh bail regardl ess of what the penalty was at sentencing.

MR. HENDERSON responded that that can still done, but judges can
be hesitant to hold soneone in jail on bail when there is no
potential sanction of incarceration. In the event there was
that potential for incarceration, a judge is nore likely to
determ ne that the person needs a high bail for all of the high-
ri sk behaviors Representative Kopp descri bed.

11: 40: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to the tinme period prior to
Senate Bill 91, and said M. Henderson stated that it was
unlikely if a person was a first-tine theft offender whether
they would actually get jail tinme. She asked whether they would
have gotten jail time if this had been their first-time theft
conviction, but they had a nyriad of other "things."

MR. HENDERSON answered that if soneone had a significant
crimnal history outside of a theft and it was their first-tinme

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- Oct ober 16, 2017



theft offense, it was likely the prosecutor would ask for jail
time.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX clarified her question that under Senate

Bill 91, and SB 54, there is no jail time even if there is a
nmyriad of other offenses.

MR. HENDERSON responded that active jail time is not authorized,
only suspended jail tine.

11:41: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT referred to Senate Bill 91 testinonies,
and the 5/19/17 menorandum from John Skidnore, through Robert
Henderson to Senator John Coghill, its Executive Sunmary,
witten subsequent to the passage of Senate Bill 91, and she
read as follows: "This nmeans Al aska has the |owest authorized
sentences in the nation for this w de range of conduct." She
asked whether M. Henderson had perfornmed the same sentencing
survey as to changing the sentencing for the class C felonies
proposed in SB 54, and whether Alaska still has the | owest
authorized sentences in the nation "for that" with the changes
in SB 54.

MR. HENDERSON advised that he did not believe Alaska is the
lowest in the nation any |onger. He then highlighted that the
reason Alaska is the |lowest under current law, is due to the way
Al aska categorizes or classifies crimnal offenses. He referred
to the Departnment of Law s (DOL) summary of all class C felony
offenses that fall wthin Title 11 [contained wthin the
commttee packets] and commented that it is a long list. He
clarified that the summary contains only class C felonies that
fall within Title 11, it does not include Titles 4, 8, 16, 28

or any other title in the Crimnal Code. He pointed out that it
is inmportant because a |lot of other states distinguish between
various |lowlevel felony offenses, even wthin their sane

cl assifications. For exanple, he said, many states distinguish
between violent |owlevel felony offenses and non-violent |ow
|l evel felony offenses, and Al aska does not. | nstead, he

expl ai ned, Alaska handles that situation by authorizing the
judge to inmpose this particular presunptive range, and that
range has been intended to enconpass all of that nyriad of
conduct . He remarked that it comes back to why it is so
inmportant there is the sentencing range in SB 54.

11:44: 23 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 29- Oct ober 16, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT surmsed that other states have |arger
classifications and "you kind of chart out what states do and

what their classifications,” and folks that want to repeal
Senate Bill 91 and start over, and want to take M. Henderson's
menmor andum to Senator Coghill and inplenent sone of the wde
ranges. She indicated it would be a better way for the

| egislature to serve the public, and keep the public safe, "by
having sonme of these other states that have inplenented this
broad range and nore categories of the better way of deciding
crimnal justice, and how we sentence and how we convict

people.” The proponents of repealing Senate Bill 91 have | ooked
at this nmeno, and suggest repealing and inplenenting M.
Hender son's recomendati ons. She asked whether M. Henderson

would like to see a different form possibly take the other
references in the nmeno, and change how Al aska does that to nore
refl ect successful states.

MR. HENDERSON answered that a full repeal of Senate Bill 91 is
dangerous because it has nunerous phases and it would be a step
backwards from where the legislature started. He agreed that
Al aska | ooking to other states is a good place to start. For
exanple, "how do we" nake sure the judges have discretion to
treat violent offenders differently than non-violent offenders.
O her states have addressed that issue and have given Al aska
sone guidance, and the Crimnal Justice Conm ssion is another
body |ooking at that issue. He referred to the question of
whet her the legislature should start all over, and pointed out
that Senate Bill 91 has nultiple phases and sone of those phases
have not yet been inplenented. He explained that phase one,
reclassification of crimnal offenses (audio difficulties) went
into effect July 2016; phase two, changes to probation and
parole, went into effect January [2017], and the question of how
Al aska handl es, sanctions, and incentivizes people on probation
and parole is in play now, and judges are still Ilearning and
figuring out what works; and phase three, the pretrial services
unit is inportant to Alaska and is the first tinme the state w |
be able to supervise offenders in pretrial status, which cones
into effect January 1, 2018.

11:47: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT described that the cart was put before
the horse, and crimnal justice reform should have started with
phases two and three, and then if those phases were successful,
to nove to phase one because the public is nobst upset about
phase one. She referred to the 6/17/16, Departnent of Law s
bill review to Governor Bill Wilker, and said it warns about

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- Oct ober 16, 2017



some of these things in phase one, is a detailed |ook at phase
one, and it possibly points out sonme of the flaws seen w thout
havi ng phase three inplenented, especially. In review ng sone
of its recomendations, she said she assumes M. Henderson
supports SB 54 in its current form and asked whether there are
other things DOL woul d be supportive of if instituted in SB 54.
She asked whether DOL is open to |looking at other anendnents
that would strengthen SB 54, and if so, would he be willing to
provide a list of additional changes to SB 54 based off of the
6/ 17/ 16 meno wherein sonme issues were pointed out with Senate

Bill 91. A list of amendnents was taken from the bill review
letter t hat she bel i eves conceptual ly make sense in
strengthening Senate Bill 91, and she surmsed that M.

Hender son woul d be supporti ve.

MR. HENDERSON responded that this is a process, and as Governor
Wal ker said when proposing SB 54, this is a good and i nportant
first step, and it is too early to tell whether there will be
addi ti onal steps. Contained within SB 54 are the issues they
heard from their |aw enforcenent partners that needed to be
addr essed qui ckly, he said.

11:50: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that if there is a neno
wherein DOL had "a whole bunch of suggestions to Senate Bill
91," why DOL could not say on the record that it would Ilike
t hese suggestions i npl enent ed.

MR. HENDERSON replied that after this hearing he wll review
that nmeno because if there are suggestions, he wants to be sure
he is clear on the neno.

11:50: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked M. Henderson to explain the three
phases.

MR. HENDERSON responded that, generally speaking, phase one went
into effect in July 2016, and was the revision of the
classification and sentencing structure of the Crimnal Code.
Class C felony sentences noved from zero to two years, to zero
to 18 nonths suspended probation; where the presunptive range
was changed; and where it elevated the (audio difficulties)
threshold from $750 to $1,000 felony |evel theft. That is the
reclassification (audio difficulties), he said. Phase two went
into effect in January 2017, the probation and parole phase, in

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 31- Oct ober 16, 2017



whi ch probation and parole instituted a new way to nonitor and
surprise offenders on probation and parole. He explained there
are adm nistrative sanctions and incentives to encourage people

to perform well on probation and parole, and the earned
conpliance credit is incentive to be on probation for a shorter
period of tine. Research shows that if people wll reoffend
they wll reoffend (audio difficulties - issues Wwth

construction noi ses), he said.

11:52: 37 AM

[ CHAI R CLAMAN had a discussion with unknown speaker asking Chair
Claman to repeat his request for people to nmute their lines.]

11:53: 11 AM

MR HENDERSON noted that earned conpliance credit was
i npl enented because the research shows that people who wll
violate their probation or reoffend once released will do that
within the first six to twelve nonths after their release. I n
the event a person can be incentivized to stay the course,
engage in their ordered treatnent, and do all of the things the
state wants them to do, they are nuch nore likely to succeed.
Phase three is bail and pretrial release, which goes into effect
on January 1, 2018, and at that point, the Departnent of

Corrections wll have 60 new pretrial service officers to
supervise and assess offenders on bail release. The officers
wll use an evidence based risk assessnent tool in assessing
bail offering judges nore information when assessing bail as to
low, medium and high-risk individuals. The risk assessnent
tool wll assess two separate factors: the risk of a person
commtting a new crimnal act, and the risk of failure to appear
because at this point the person is presuned innocent. The
tool, he reiterated, will allow DOC to provide judges with nore
information as to what the bail should be, and under what

condi ti ons.

11:55:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN advi sed that the construction conpany had
been advised the neeting would conclude at 11:30, which is
roughly 30 mnutes past tine. He advised Representative
Rei nbold that he would give her one brief question, and if it
was not brief, she would not be allowed to ask it.

[ Di scussion between Chair Caman and Representative Reinbold
regardi ng asking a question.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 32- Oct ober 16, 2017



11:56: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether M. Henderson believes
public safety is the governnent's top mandate, noting her belief
that it is dangerous not to repeal Senate Bill 91.

MR. HENDERSON answered that as a prosecutor, public safety is
one of his nunber one priorities.

11:57: 07 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 11:57 a.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 33- Oct ober 16, 2017



